ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 10, 2011
8:23 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO 64
"An Act relating to permanent notor vehicle registration; and
providing for an effective date."
- BILLS PREVI QUSLY HEARD/ SCHEDULED
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 64

SHORT TI TLE: PERMANENT MOTOR VEHI CLE REG STRATI ON
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) STOLTZE, KELLER

01/ 18/ 11 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11

01/ 18/ 11 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 11 (H STA, FIN

02/ 10/ 11 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

DARRELL BREESE, Staff

Representative Bill Stoltze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 64 on behal f of Representative
Stoltze, joint prime sponsor.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 10, 2011



VHI TNEY BREWSTER, Director

Di vision of Mtor Vehicles

Departnent of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
64.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:23:25 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
nmeeting to order at 8:23 a.m Representatives Keller, Seaton,
Wl son, Petersen, Guenberg, and Lynn were present at the call
to order. Representative Johansen arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HB 64- PERVANENT MOTOR VEH CLE REG STRATI ON

8:34: 25 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the only order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 64, "An Act relating to permanent notor vehicle
regi stration; and providing for an effective date."

8:35: 00 AM

DARRELL BREESE, Staff, Representative Bill Stoltze, Al aska State
Legislature, presented HB 64 on behalf of Representative
Stoltze, joint prime sponsor. In response to Representative
Gruenberg, he said it was not the intent of the joint prine
sponsors to include notorcycles in the bill, but because they
are nentioned in the fiscal note, clarification is being sought
on that matter. In response to a followup question, he said
that although the intent was not to include notorcycles, the
joint prime sponsors would not seek to exclude themif it turns
out that they are included.

8:37: 05 AM

MR. BREESE said the purpose of HB 64 is two-fold: to make the
registration process nore streamlined for the consunmer and to
help the Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW) run nore efficiently.
He noted that currently Mntana is the only state to offer
permanent registration; it does so for vehicles that are 11
years old and older, and it charges three and one half tines the
regul ar registration fee. He stated that HB 64 proposes to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 10, 2011



charge the lesser of five tines the regular registration fee
established in statute or $100. He said those figures were
arrived at in response to information obtained fromthe DW back
in Novenmber (2010) when the bill was being drafted, and that
nunber differs fromthe fiscal note currently avail able, because
of a mstake nmade by the DW. He said should the bill nmake it
to the House Finance Conmittee there will be a discussion as to
how to adjust the fiscal note to match the correct statistics.

MR. BREESE said if HB 64 were enacted today, it would affect
441,000 vehicles, which is 63 percent of all the vehicles
currently registered in Al aska. He reiterated that this would
lighten the workload for DW and nake interaction with the DW
nore user-friendly.

8:41: 08 AM
MR. BREESE said that under HB 64, after 11 years the nunber of

vehicles that would be eligible would drop by 8 percent, after
15 years it would drop to 44 percent, and after 18 years that

nunber would drop further to 30 percent. However, he said a
decrease would not really be seen because the 441,000 eligible
today will increase each year. He noted as a point of interest

that currently there is a vehicle that has been registered since
1900, which would be the ol dest vehicle to qualify under HB 64.
M. Breese noted that under HB 64, people would have the choice
of whether to get a permanent registration or continue paying
for registration every two years.

8:42: 50 AM

MR. BREESE, in response to Representative Petersen, said a
permanent registration would not transfer to a new owner. In
response to another question, he indicated that a person with a
permanent registration would still be responsible for staying

current wth inspection and maintenance (I/M certification in
areas of the state that require it, and he suggested that
perhaps a sticker could be displayed in the wndow of the
person's vehicle to show that IMtesting is current.

8:44:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said another factor that nust be
considered is a driver's age. He explained that at age 65, a
per son gets a free regi stration on hi s/ her vehi cl e.
Furthernore, he surm sed that some people may have specialized
pl at es. He said he thinks those factors were not considered

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 10, 2011



and he would like a nore accurate analysis done. He opined that
if the twin goals of the joint prinme sponsors are to nake things
easier on the consunmer and nore efficient for the [division],
then perhaps there nay be a way to factor in whether a car is
not wused, for exanple, by |listing the odoneter reading on
penalty of perjury.

8:48: 08 AM

MR. BREESE responded that current statute allows for collected
car plates, and that would not be changed under HB 64.
Furthernore, the ability of those 65 and older to receive free
registration is currently in statute and will not change. In
response to Representati ve G uenber g, he of fered hi s
understanding that issue of seniors getting free registration
was not factored into the fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG naned two aspects [related to fees]:
the cost of the plate and the tax charged. He queried, "W're
not dealing here with the plate, but those guys still have to
pay the tax don't they?"

MR. BREESE answered, "Correct."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered his understandi ng that whether
or not someone gets a Pearl Harbor plate or a personalized plate
is irrelevant to the discussion.

MR. BREESE said the information regarding taxes is included in
the bill [in Section 2, subsection (b)], but only covers a
period of ten years; therefore, it would be necessary to revisit
t he issue. He offered his understanding of how the process is
handl ed in Mntana. He indicated if the nmunicipalities are
given the responsibility to collect the taxes, then that would
save noney for the state.

8:52: 24 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the joint prinme sponsors would
like to take out the $100 fee nmentioned [in Section 2,

subsection (b)].

MR. BREESE said Representative Stoltze chose to |leave the $100

fee in the bill to encourage discussion and debate to arrive at
t he best nunber. He said the joint prinme sponsors think that
five tinmes the rate established in statute is fair. He noted

that Montana's rate is 3.7. He pointed out that the five tines

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 10, 2011



anmount was chosen based on information fromthe DW, which |ater
proved to be incorrect. He said the DW was off by about
300, 000 vehicles that would eligible.

MR. BREESE, in response to Representative Seaton, he said he
does not know the exact nunber of those who do their
registration by mail, but offered his understanding that it is
approxi mately 60 percent.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he would like to know how nany of the
in-person visits to the DW were nade solely to pay a
regi stration fee. He asked if it is anticipated that an effect
of bill may be that parents would |leave the registration of a
vehicle driven by their offspring in their name, and he
guesti oned whether that would result in confusion at the tinme of
an acci dent .

MR. BREESE said the joint prime sponsor has not considered that
scenari o.

8:57: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON remarked that the DW has been a |arge
revenue source for the state, and he questioned whether the bil
may reduce the revenue stream

MR. BREESE responded that the intent of the bill is not to
reduce the revenue stream and shift that burden sonewhere el se.
He said the current fiscal note was received recently and has
gener ated concern.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ained he was seeking assurance that
the intention is not to further concentrate the state's
dependence on oil taxes.

8:59:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN stated, "I don't think we should be in
the business of creating inconme streans when we don't have to."
He expressed concern that the intent to lighten the load for the
DW nmay actually result in the division taking on nore
responsibility, and he said he does not want that to happen. He
asked M. Breese if the joint prinme sponsors have considered
i ncl udi ng commerci al vehicles.

MR. BREESE answered that vehicle weight is a factor wth
commercial vehicles, and it would be nore conplicated to include

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 10, 2011



t hem Currently the state offers permanent registration to
commercial trailers, he said.

9:01: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said he will rmaintain interest in that
i ssue. Regarding the aforenentioned 1/M program he asked why
the state is "asking for another position and nore noney" in
conjunction with a nunicipal program

9:03:12 AM

MR. BREESE said he, too, noted the additional staff person
witten into the fiscal note. He further commented that he does
not see any additional responsibility that would have to be
covered by the Departnent of Environmental Conservation that is
not already addressed in the nmenorandum of understanding. He
said he finds the addition of the staff person perpl exing.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN stated that he |ikes the concept of the

bill, but does not believe that the DW should be a noney neking
entity.
9:04: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, as joint prime sponsor, asked M. Breese
if historical vehicles and specialized plates were considered
for inclusion in HB 64.

MR. BREESE answered that the DW charges a separate charge for
specialized plates, and an assunption was mnade that those
wanting specialized plates would continue to be willing to pay
the extra fee involved; therefore, specialized plates were not
included in the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked M. Breese to look closer at the
col |l ector car issue. He explained that collectors want to keep
cars for a long time, and it would be convenient for themto be
i ncluded, or at |east have sonme sort of extended registration.
Not wi t hstanding that, he enphasized that he does not want to
slow the bill process down.

9: 06: 51 AM
MR. BREESE suggested that a person with a collective car could

choose to get a pernmanent registration, but then would not have
t he special plate.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 10, 2011



9:08:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON said she does not think the bill is
near to being ready to nove out of committee. She questi oned
the need for another person when the work in the departnment wll
be I ess. She questioned the proposed fee of five tines the rate
established in statute or $100.00, because she said everyone
woul d choose the $100 because it would be |ess.

9:10: 34 AM

MR. BREESE said he agrees that there is work that needs to be
done, primarily based on the fiscal note, but said the hearing
today is helpful in finding out what needs to be done, and how
much the fee shoul d be.

9:12: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said he wants notorcycles included in
the | anguage of the bill. He said he supports letting the House
Finance Conmittee take care of the fiscal note. He stated
support of noving the bill out of conmttee.

9:13:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said his concerns are not limted to
the fiscal note. He said he is not sure that the bill wll
reach its goal of offering convenience to those getting
registrations and streamlining the DW s operations. He

suggested that one way to actually neke noney from this
legislation is by getting noney from people up front, which
gives the state the use of people's noney while giving those
peopl e a break up front.

MR. BREESE said if people pay a two-year registration five
times, then the state has paynent for ten years, but the vehicle
owner may end up selling the vehicle after five years.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that the state nay not want
to make it a lifetime registration, but my choose instead to
specify a certain period of tinme and get nore noney up front.

MR. BREESE reiterated the statistics related to attrition. He
sai d vehicles get ol der and peopl e buy new vehicl es.

9:18: 50 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 10, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG interjected another factor, which is
that vehicles are nore expensive and nore sophisticated these
days, and because of the econony, people keep their cars |onger.
9:19:11 AM

MR. BREESE agr eed.

9:19: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to page 1, line 14,
which read, "A permanent registration may not be renewed."” He
asked if the intention of the bill is that there will be only
one pernmanent registration entered on a vehicle, and that if a
vehicle is sold it wuld fall back into the two-year
registration cycle, or that if a person buys a vehicle that is
over ten years old, then he/she will automatically qualify for a

per manent registration.

MR. BREESE responded that the intent is that the vehicle
registration would not be transferable. He offered further
details, and said he thinks the I|anguage of the bill could be
inmproved to clarify this issue.

9:21:20 AM

MR. BREESE, in response to a question from Representative
Seaton, explained that the state collects the taxes on vehicle
registrations that are inposed by certain nunicipalities. He
said it is convenient for the nmunicipality, and the state makes
8 percent for that service. He said the issue of whether a

person woul d get back taxes paid on a permanent registration if
that person sold the car soon afterward would have to be taken
up with the nmunicipalities.

9:23:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Reece to find out what the
positions of the nunicipalities are regarding that issue. He
then asked why a permanent registration would not work for al
vehi cl es.

9:26: 03 AM

MR. BREESE said permanent vehicle registration for all vehicles
would be easier, and he surmsed that shifting the tax

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 10, 2011



collection back to the municipalities would result in a big
savings for the state; however, he said that since the majority
of vehicle sales occur after the first five years of vehicle
ownership, permanent registration instated for all vehicles
would result in a loss in revenue.

9:27:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked if the bill would inadvertently
encourage older vehicles to be on the road |onger than they
ot herw se m ght.

MR. BREESE said that factor was considered, but he suggested
that may be a subject for another bill. He surm sed that nost
people want to drive safe vehicles, and the bill would not
increase the nunber of those who are already driving unsafe
vehi cl es.

9:29: 49 AM

VWH TNEY BREWSTER, Director, Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW),
Departnment of Administration, estimated that approximtely 75
percent of vehicle registration transactions are done outside
the DW offices, either through the Internet, through the nmail
or through one of the division's business partners, such as at
an | /M station. She relayed that the DW noved to biennial
registration in 1997, with the hope that that would decrease
wait tinme at the DW, and that was successful. She stated that
conceptually the DW does not oppose the pernmanent registration
of vehicles, but the division's concern is related to the
adm ni stration of such a change. Regarding the notor vehicle
registration tax and having nunicipalities collect it, she said
presently there are 16 nunicipalities for which the DW collects
that tax in accordance wth AS 28.10.431. She said that statute
mandates that notor vehicle registration tax is to be collected
in the same manner in which registration fees are collected;
therefore, she questioned whether the municipalities would have
the statutory authority under current statute to collect that
t ax. She said not all nunicipalities have adopted the fee
schedule in statute, but they have the ability, by ordinance, to
adopt a separate fee schedule that is nore than what is set out
in the schedule; therefore, there may be a fiscal inpact to
those nmunicipalities. She said currently there are seven
muni ci palities that have adopted a separate fee schedul e.

9:33: 44 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 10, 2011



M5. BREWSTER, regarding the fiscal note, said regardless of
whet her the nunmber of vehicles [to get pernanent registration]
is 90,000 or 443,000, there will be a revenue |oss. She said
the division factored in many assunptions to get an accurate
figure. She directed attention to the fiscal note, which shows
that in 2012, there wll be an estimted 221,600 vehicles
eligible for permanent registration. She explained that that is
about half of the 443,000 vehicles that would be eligible for
permanent registration under HB 64, with the other half comng
up for renewal in 2013. She said in 2014 and beyond, there wl|
be a loss of revenue, which would have been nmade through
bi enni al registration. She said a second factor is that there
woul d be a slight increase for notorcycle registration, because
notorcycle registration currently is less than the $100

mentioned in the bill. She stated that the division nade the
assunption that notorcycles would be included under HB 64,
because the bill references registration procedures in AS

28.10.108, which includes notorcycles. She explained that is
why notorcycles are included in the fiscal note. She reiterated
that the division is not opposed to the bill, but is concerned
about how it would administer it.

9:36: 18 AM

M5. BREWSTER, in response to Representative Guenberg, said the
division did not factor in that nmany of the people with old cars
are already getting free registration because they are 65 or
ol der, but she said she does not think that would significantly
change the nunbers. She explained that although gathering that

statistic seens sinple, it is not, because in the DWs
mai nfrane system vehicles are not connected to a person's
driver's license, because a person does not have to own a

driver's license to own a vehicle in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he wuld Ilike to see that
statistic. He tal ked about the United States Postal Service's
"forever stanps." He stated his assunption that from tine to
time nmotor vehicle registration fees go up, and he asked if
having "forever plates"” would entice people.

MR. BREWSTER said that is an interesting concept. She said the
| egislature sets the DW's fees; therefore, it would be the
purview of the legislature to consider that. She said the DW
woul d not be opposed to any changes in those fees, because those
fees go directly to the general fund.

9:39: 52 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 10, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nentioned the concept of selling a
house and having reserves from having prepaid taxes. He
suggested that the plates could be associated with the car,
rat her than the owner, which he said would increase the val ue of
the car because of the prepaid taxes.

M5. BREWSTER responded that that is a new concept that the DW
has not consi dered.

CHAIR LYNN said he thinks that concept is outside of the scope
of the bill.

9:40: 49 AM

M5. BREWSTER, in response to a question from Representative
Seaton, offered her understanding that under HB 64, anyone who
el ects permanent registration would pay the | esser of five tines
the notor vehicle registration tax or $100. Those
muni ci palities that have set a fee schedule that is greater than
what is set in statute would see a decrease in the taxes that
are coll ected.

9:42: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee has the jurisdiction between the state and | ocal
muni cipalities, and this is a case where the state may be
overriding statutory authority for nunicipalities to set their
fee rates.

M5. BREWSTER, in response to the chair, said she does not have
any specific suggestions on that issue, and cannot speak for the
| ocal governnents. She said she just wanted to bring it up,
because the issue would inmpact nunicipalities and there is no
one currently present to speak on their behalf. In response to
the chair, she said she knows that the Al aska Muinicipal League
(AML) is interested in this issue.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said since this issue will inmpact seven of
the nost populous comunities, it is inportant to figure out
what the inpacts wll be and hear testinony from those

conmuni ties.

9:45: 27 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 10, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER echoed M. Breese's statenent that the
proposed | egislation would benefit both Al askans and the DW.
In regard to the possible inpact to municipalities, he suggested
that the Alaska Muinicipal League could share its concerns wth
t he House Fi nance Conmittee.

9:46: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said the bill has been noticed for five
days and no one fromthe nunicipalities has stepped forward. He
stated his assunption that the issue nust not be that inportant
to themif they have not shown up

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said another possibility is that
representatives of the municipalities may not yet be aware of
this | egislation.

CHAIR LYNN remarked that it is not the fault of the commttee if
muni ci palities don't read a noti ce.

9:48: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON referred to the title of the bill, and
observed that it does not say anything about a municipality
having to take over responsibility. She added that she does not
intend to hold up the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN noted that M. Brewster had said that
the nmunicipalities indicated to her that they were interested in
HB 64. He further relayed that he used to be a professiona

| obbyi st and, during that tinme, |ooked at every bill that was
announced. He opined that there is no excuse for municipalities
not attending to a bill of interest to them

9:49: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked Ms. Brewster what she nmeant when
she said the nmunicipalities have an interest in the bill.

9:49: 58 AM

M5. BREWSTER indicated that an AM. | obbyist had inquired as to
the possible inpact of the proposed bill on |ocal governnent
but said since there was no inpact reflected in the fiscal note,
the DW was unable to answer that question.

9:51: 03 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 10, 2011



MR. BREESE, in response to Representative P. WIson's concern

indicated that HB 64 does not address what happens to notor
vehicle tax beyond a certain period, which is why that is not
reflected in the bill title. Regarding the suggestion to
i nclude commercial vehicles, he said it would be necessary to
consider the depreciation of commercial vehicles and how | ong
the vehicles are maintained. |In response to Chair Lynn, he said
he does not think there are any issues in the bill that could
not be addressed in the next commttee of referral.

9:53:13 AM
CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony.
9:53:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN opined that because so nany questions
have been raised regarding HB 64, it is not ready to nove out of
comm ttee.

9: 53: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reiterated that the House State Affairs
Standing Commttee is the commttee of jurisdiction regarding
the interaction between state and nunicipal laws. He said HB 64
woul d change the authorities that municipalities have under
current statute to set schedul es regarding notor vehicle taxes,

which would significantly reduce nunicipalities' revenues. He
said the commttee has not heard fromany nmunicipality. He said
a nunber of issues have been raised, but are unanswered. He

noted that the conmmttee has not heard from the DW as to
whether the bill would streamine its work. He opined that the

bill is not ready to nove out of commttee.

9:56: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG echoed the comments of Representatives
Petersen and Seaton that this bill has had no work done on it,
and he recommended taking tine on it. He said, "You can't just
wi nk at these issues.” He opined that the House State Affairs

Standing Commttee is a good commttee that should do its job
and "not just pass it out for political expediency."

CHAI R LYNN responded that no one would pass out this or any bill
for political expediency.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 10, 2011



9:57:33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said no one can state another person's
intent for voting to nove a bill out of conmmttee. He said he
| earned from Ms. Brewster that including notorcycles would raise
costs, which he relayed is not his w sh.

9:58:41 AM

MR. BREESE, in response to Representative P. WIlson, said the
joint prinme sponsors would like the bill noved to the House
Finance Comm ttee where the financial inpacts can be addressed.

9:59: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER expressed his confidence that the issue of
financial inmpact can be address in the House Finance Commttee.

10: 00: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HB 64 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Keller, Johansen
and Lynn voted in favor of nmoving HB 64 out of conmttee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and the attached fiscal not es.
Representatives Seaton, G uenberg, and Petersen voted against
it.

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON said, " think it should have
anendnents - pass with anmendnents.”

CHAIR LYNN asked Representative P. WIlson for clarification of
her vote.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN r equest ed an at - ease.
The conmttee took a brief at-ease.

10: 03: 08 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the original roll call vote would be
voi ded.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 10, 2011



10: 03: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HB 64 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

CHAI R LYNN rem nded commi ttee menber s t hat i ndi vi dual
recommendations could be the follow ng: do pass, do not pass,
no reconmendati on, or anend.

10: 03: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ect ed.

10: 03: 31 AM

A roll <call vote was taken. Representati ves Johansen, P.
Wlson, Keller, and Lynn voted in favor of noving HB 64 out of
conmttee wth individual recomendations and the attached
fiscal note. Representatives Seaton, Guenberg, and Petersen
voted against it. Therefore, HB 64 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee by a vote of 4-3.

10: 04: 46 AM

ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Comrittee neeting was adjourned at 10:05
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 10, 2011



